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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The former Waukesha County Courthouse occupies the south side of West

Main Street from North East Avenue to Martin Street in downtown Waukesha.
The building comprises three distinct sections, differing in style and
construction dates, but all having walls of cream-colored, rock-faced local
limestone and all essentially three stories in height. As seen from the
north, the building's plqn takes this shape:
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West Main Street

The oldest section (1), the west wing, is dated 1885 and served originally
as the county jail. It is a simple, attractive, rectangular building, with
rectangular window openings and steeply pitched hipped and gabled roofs.
The interior has been remodelled (it was converted from jail to offices
during the late 1930's), but the exterior remains much as it was 90 years
ago. At present this wing is unoccupied and is in need of repair inside
and out.

The east wing (2) was the courthouse proper and was erected in 1893-94 in
accordance with plans furnished by Milwaukee architects Charles H. Rau

and Robert G. Kirsch. An imposing Richardsonian Romanesque edifice, the
building is rectangular, with round-arched and rectangular openings, hipped
roof, round towers at the corners of the facade (north elevation), and a
lofty, two-stage tower centered above the north entrance. The building
continued in use as the county courthouse until completion of the present
courthouse on West Moreland Boulevard in 1959. Over the years the exterior
has undergone only minor alterations. Interiors on all floors have been
altered to accommodate changing occupancies, but on the second and third
stories one finds substantial portions of the original woodwork. The first
floor now houses exhibit areas and offices of the Waukesha County Histori-
cal Museum. On the second story are offices of the Southeastern Wisconsin
Regional Planning Commission and U.S. Agricultural Stabilization and Con-
servation Service, while additional SEWRPC offices occupy the third floor.
Solidly constructed and well maintained, the east wing survivés in very
good condition.

Connecting the two 19th century buildings, the south wing (3) was erected
in 1938-39 to house various county offices, the municipal court, and a new
jail. Today, this wing contains offices and research facilities of the
Waukesha County Historical Museum, together with SEWRPC offices and the
headquarters of the Soil Conservation Service.

On the northeast corner of the property, directly in front of the east
wing, is all that remains of a large turtle effigy mound which once
measured almost 290 feet in length. A county historical society marker de-
scribes the original mound and first courthouse (1849).
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Location, size, and function, as well as the striking appearance of the
section built in 1893-94, have made the former Waukesha County Courthouse
the principal landmark of downtown Waukesha. A handsome country cousin
of H.H. Richardson's renowned Allegheny County Courthouse, the east wing
is Waukesha County's foremost example of the Richardsonian Romanesque
style. And though less impressive, the west wing, erected in 1885, is
also of interest architecturally, for its simple, straightforward design.

As indicated, the present occupants are various federal, regional, and
local governmental agencies and institutions, including the Waukesha
County Historical Museum. Among the museum's holdings, the doll collec-
tion and the research collection:are said to be particularly noteworthy.

The building stands on a site once occupied largely by a huge turtle effi-
gy, the work of aboriginals of Wisconsin's Effigy Mound €Gulture. Unfor-
tunately, excavation for the first Waukesha County Courthouse, dedicated
in 1849 and demolished in the 1890's, destroyed most of the mound, but

a recognizable portion remains. Both the mound and the original courthous
are cited in the text of a county historical society marker near the north
east corner of the property. A sketch of the turtle effigy appears in
Plate XIX of Lapham's Antiquities of Wisconsin, and Charles F. Brown
states in The Wisconsin Archeologist that '"This turtle effigy had the
distinction of being the first effigy mound to be described from Wiscon-
sin, Dr. Lapham having printed a description of it in the Milwaukee
Advertiser, in 1836.," The remnant seen today is apparently a proximal
portion of the tail, if one may judge accurately from Lapham's original
sketch,
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